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          1  COMMITTEE ON HOUSING AND BUILDINGS

          2                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO: Good

          3  afternoon.  My name is Madeline Provenzano, and I

          4  Chair the Committee on Housing and Buildings.  Today

          5  the Committee is conducting a second hearing on

          6  Legislation that has been proposed to address safety

          7  issues surrounding scaffolds.  On January 16th of

          8  this year, the Committee held its first hearing on

          9  Intro. No. 237.  Today the Committee will hear

         10  testimony on proposed Intro. No. 237- A, with

         11  revisions based upon the recommendations of the

         12  Department of Buildings.

         13                 Over the course of recent years,

         14  poorly constructed supported scaffolds and the

         15  improper use of supported scaffolds have resulted in

         16  accidents, deaths, and the issuance of violations.

         17  Sadly, to many people have died as a result of

         18  either ignorance or disregard for safety standards.

         19                 Today's bill, proposed Bill 237- A

         20  would impose new licensing requirements on companies

         21  engaged in the scaffold/hoisting contractor

         22  business, and create two classes of

         23  scaffolding/hoisting certifications dependent upon

         24  the type of work that is being performed.  Those

         25  workers who do not hold certificates must be
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          2  employed by the licensee, supervised by the

          3  appropriate certificate holder, be competent as

          4  provided by the Rules of the Department of

          5  Buildings, and must have satisfactorily completed

          6  the appropriate safety education courses.

          7                 Although, I had hoped that this bill

          8  would be further along than it is at this point, I

          9  want to assure everyone that it is still a work in

         10  progress.  No one is more anxious than I am to have

         11  a scaffolding bill passed, but I also know that we

         12  all agree that we are not willing to trade off

         13  urgency for a less than perfect bill.

         14                 So, having said that, the Committee

         15  expects to hear from the Department of Buildings, as

         16  well as knowledgeable professionals in the building

         17  trades.  If anyone wishes to speak, please make sure

         18  that you have signed in with the Sergeant at Arms,

         19  and we have the Commissioner of the Department of

         20  Buildings, Patricia Lancaster ready to go. Thank

         21  you.

         22                 COMMISSIONER LANCASTER:  Good

         23  afternoon, Chairperson Provenzano and Members of the

         24  Housing and Buildings Committee.  My name is

         25  Patricia Lancaster, and I am the Commissioner of the
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          2  City's Department of Buildings.  With me, to my

          3  right, is Scott Mason, the Department's Assistant

          4  General Counsel and Julie Lubin, Director of the

          5  Department's Program Management and Analysis Unit.

          6  Thank you for the opportunity to speak to you this

          7  afternoon regarding Intro. 237- A, concerning

          8  supported scaffolding and hoisting work.

          9                 Before getting into the details of

         10  the legislation, I would like to take a moment to

         11  give you some background explaining its origins, and

         12  why it is a necessity. This bill was proposed by the

         13  Department after extensive internal discussion and

         14  numerous meetings with various industry sectors,

         15  including the supported scaffolding industry itself.

         16    Its goals are integrally related to the heart of

         17  the Department's overall mission:  Promoting the

         18  safety of buildings and construction sites in New

         19  York City. Accordingly, we believe that adoption of

         20  this legislation would mark a major step forward in

         21  creating a safer construction environment in this

         22  City.

         23                 The City's Administrative Code

         24  implicitly acknowledges the dangers inherent in

         25  construction work by giving the Department
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          2  regulatory authority, via licensing over 27 trades,

          3  representing occupations as diverse as sign hangers,

          4  riggers, and electricians.  Nevertheless, many

          5  dangerous construction- related trades remain

          6  unregulated by the Department, putting the public

          7  and other construction workers in jeopardy every

          8  day.  As the Department does not have the authority

          9  to license general contractors, the best way to

         10  minimize the perils intrinsic to construction work

         11  is for the Department's regulatory authority to

         12  extend to those elements that pose the greatest

         13  risk.  Scaffolding is a particularly appropriate

         14  candidate for such action.

         15                 The hazards that can accompany

         16  scaffolding work were dramatically and tragically

         17  illustrated in October 2001, when five people were

         18  killed and 10 more people were injured by a

         19  scaffolding collapse at 215 Park Avenue South. At a

         20  Safety Summit I convened last November,

         21  Representatives of industry, labor, management, and

         22  government were asked to consider some of the

         23  potential causes of construction site accidents and

         24  possible solutions.  A recurring concern was

         25  expressed with the lack of adequate training for
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          2  those at construction sites, including those

          3  installing and using scaffolds.  Summit participants

          4  suggested that an essential step in addressing this

          5  problem would be requiring training and assuring its

          6  availability.  These factors, along with a desire to

          7  prevent further incidents in the future, illustrate

          8  why the Department believes that the regulation of

          9  scaffolding is such a critical issue.

         10                 As I mentioned before, this bill is

         11  intended to help close that safety gap.  It has

         12  several key features that I would like to highlight

         13  this afternoon, for your consideration.

         14                 First, the bill creates a definition

         15  of supported scaffolds for the Building Code.  No

         16  such definition currently exists.  The definition

         17  reads as follows:  One or more platforms supported

         18  by outrigger beams, brackets, poles, legs, uprights,

         19  posts, frames, including pre- fabricated frames that

         20  are mechanized but not motorized, or similar rigid

         21  support, including back structures connecting

         22  hoistways to buildings, and including structures

         23  where sidewalk protection is constructed as an

         24  integral part of the apparatus, whether indoors or

         25  outdoors.
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          2                 Next, the bill adds an article to the

          3  Administrative Code creating a new license, called

          4  Scaffolding/Hoisting Contractor's License.  All

          5  companies that engage in the business of erecting,

          6  installing, repairing, maintaining, or dismantling

          7  material and personnel hoists, or who engage in the

          8  business of erecting, installing, repairing, or

          9  dismantling supported scaffolds over 26 feet high

         10  must have this license.  The business itself is

         11  issued the license.  In addition, all licensed firms

         12  must employ an individual who holds a

         13  scaffolding/hoisting certificate.  There are no

         14  requirements that these certificate holders be

         15  owners or officers, or partners of the licensed

         16  company.

         17                 Under the bill, there are two

         18  classifications of certificate holders, that is the

         19  individuals.  Class A, the holder of which is

         20  responsible for the supervision of the erection,

         21  installation, repair, maintenance, or dismantling of

         22  material and personnel hoists and back structures;

         23  and Class B, the holder of which is responsible for

         24  the supervision of the erection, installation,

         25  repair or dismantling of supported scaffolds over 26
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          2  feet high.  These individuals are subject to

          3  specific qualifications set forth in the

          4  legislation, such as five years of experience, and

          5  an exam and so on.

          6                 Intro 237- A provides that the people

          7  actually performing the erection, installation,

          8  repair, and dismantling work, we will call them the

          9  scaffolding company workers, do not need

         10  certificates themselves, but must be employed by a

         11  licensee and supervised by a certificate holder.

         12  The scaffolding company workers must also meet a

         13  minimum level of competency as defined in Department

         14  rules, and be provided with regular training

         15  courses.

         16                 Work performed contrary to the

         17  licensing and supervision scheme set forth in the

         18  bill is a misdemeanor that can led to a fine set

         19  forth in the Code's penalty provision.

         20                 Once the scaffolding is erected,

         21  construction has commenced, and the scaffolding

         22  companies have moved on, the bill requires that

         23  during construction, a person whose qualifications

         24  will be defined by Department rules, must be on the

         25  site and responsible for inspections to ensure that
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          2  supported scaffolds conform with approved plans when

          3  used. This person, who we will call the user's

          4  inspector, will also have to keep a log identifying

          5  the inspections that he or she performs.  This log,

          6  along with the scaffold's drawings, plans, and

          7  specifications, shall be kept on site and available

          8  for inspection by the Department.  Knowingly

          9  allowing or causing the use of a supported scaffold

         10  contrary to this provision shall be unlawful.  The

         11  buildings differing approach to those who install

         12  and dismantle scaffolds and those who use them, is

         13  based upon the fact that those two groups are not

         14  necessarily the same.  Thus, the approach presented

         15  in Intro. 237- A, the creation of a separate

         16  regulatory framework for those who erect, install,

         17  repair, and maintain supported scaffolds and for

         18  those who use supported scaffolds, addresses the

         19  different issues facing the two groups and

         20  additionally places the key regulatory burdens upon

         21  those with actual on site authority, the scaffolding

         22  company, licensee and supervisor, certificate holder

         23  during installation, erection, repair, dismantling,

         24  and the general contractor or owner while

         25  scaffolding is being used.
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          2                 Furthermore, by authorizing the

          3  promulgation of rules setting forth separate

          4  training and qualification requirements for one, the

          5  certificate holders, supervisors involved in

          6  scaffolding erection, installation, repair or

          7  dismantling, and two, the scaffolding company

          8  workers, and three, the user's inspectors, the bill

          9  promotes qualification and training in a

         10  comprehensive and flexible fashion which is

         11  specifically geared to the way the industry actually

         12  does its work.

         13                 The bill also contains some technical

         14  amendments to the Building Code that concern

         15  supported scaffolds.  Specifically, the bill amends

         16  Administrative Code 27- 1042 to eliminate the

         17  current, ambiguous requirement that pole scaffolds

         18  over 75 feet be "designed" and replaces it with a

         19  requirement that applications be filed and permits

         20  issued for all supported scaffolds over 26 feet

         21  high.  The applications are to be filed by licensed

         22  engineers or architects.  Similarly, the

         23  Administrative Code 27- 1042 is amended by the bill

         24  to eliminate the requirement that multiple- point

         25  suspension scaffolds and their component parts be

                                                            12

          1  COMMITTEE ON HOUSING AND BUILDINGS

          2   "designed".  This will be replaced with a

          3  requirement that the Department shall issue a permit

          4  for all suspension scaffolds using outrigger beams.

          5                 Finally, Intro. 237- A adds a

          6  requirement that, following the receipt of a permit

          7  to erect a non- suspended scaffold, the permittee

          8  shall post a sign on the scaffold, which identifies

          9  the permit holder's name, address, phone, the permit

         10  number, and the date of the permit's expiration.

         11                 As 237- A is enacted, we are

         12  confident that supported scaffolding in New York

         13  City will be immeasurably safer.  I thank you for

         14  the opportunity to speak to you today, and

         15  appreciate your consideration of this bill.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO:  Thank you,

         17  Commissioner.  I would like to introduce Members of

         18  my Committee; to my right is Councilwoman Diana

         19  Reyna, to my left Councilman Tony Avella, and

         20  Councilwoman Gale Brewer.

         21                 I have one question and then I will

         22  turn it over, now I have two questions.  First

         23  question, in my limited experience with scaffolding,

         24  but considering some of the accidents that we have

         25  had, some of the problems have been with people
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          2  working on the scaffolding that really did not know

          3  what they were doing, and overloaded it.  So, I

          4  guess my question is in 237- A, where is the

          5  protection against overloading scaffolding?

          6                 COMMISSIONER LANCASTER:  Well, I

          7  think it comes in a couple of different ways, one of

          8  which is by requiring that the scaffold is over 26

          9  feet because the code is now 75 feet.  So it is

         10  lower, more stringent, be designed by an

         11  architecture or engineer and submit it that means

         12  that the design itself would be engineered by

         13  someone more competent like a licensed professional.

         14    The second way is that if the licensee, the

         15  licensee is required to have experience.  The third

         16  way is that the certificate holder who is the person

         17  doing the work, erecting, and installing scaffolds,

         18  needs to have training.  The fourth way is that the

         19  person supervising it once it is up is inspecting

         20  it.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO:  Okay, but we

         22  could still have someone on that scaffolding, and I

         23  think in your, I am sorry I do not mean your, but in

         24  this current bill, we call them scaffolding company

         25  workers, could still overload a scaffolding.
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          2                 COMMISSIONER LANCASTER:  It is more

          3  likely that the scaffolding would be overloaded once

          4  the installation is completed, and construction is

          5  commenced right by the other trades.  So, that

          6  responsibility we are putting to the one person who

          7  is on site all the time, the supervisor, we call it

          8  the inspector supervisor, it does not matter whose

          9  company they work for.  The company in that case

         10  does not need to be licensed, but the person on the

         11  site is trained and is responsible for inspections.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO:  Okay, but

         13  there is also the possibility that while he is over

         14  there looking at what is going on, this little

         15  fellow over here is climbing up there with more than

         16  he should have.

         17                 COMMISSIONER LANCASTER:  Yes, and one

         18  of the inherent difficulties of scaffolding safety

         19  is that since it is used by so many different

         20  trades, you want everyone to have accountability,

         21  and what you do not want to have, is you do not want

         22  to have one trade, well it was Joe over there who

         23  brought it up and the other one saying well it was

         24  Johnny who brought it up and not knowing who has

         25  responsibility.  So, after much discussion we
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          2  thought that the person most likely to have

          3  jurisdiction, who does have jurisdiction over all of

          4  the sub- trades is the GC or general contractor.  It

          5  gives you a point for not overloading the

          6  scaffolding.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO:  Okay, what

          8  about, why not then train all of the workers,

          9  anybody who is working on scaffolding and hold the

         10  supervisors responsible if an accident or problem or

         11  whatever?

         12                 COMMISSIONER LANCASTER:  Well in

         13  consideration of that, the Department realized that

         14  if you look at the number of people, the sheer

         15  number of people that work on scaffolds it seemed it

         16  would be in the tens and tens of thousands, and that

         17  requiring each of those to go to training might be

         18  more onerous economically then was actually

         19  feasible. Now, ideally, I suppose everybody who

         20  works anywhere in the City doing anything would

         21  receive safety training.  We have chosen not to go

         22  that route yet, because we thought that it would be

         23  too hard to enforce.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO:  Okay, so

         25  that is a question I will hold, then for some other
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          2  folks that may be testifying.

          3                 COMMISSIONER LANCASTER:  Yeah, okay.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO:  On the

          5  licensing part, first of all I guess the main

          6  question is why licensing?  That is a big question.

          7                 COMMISSIONER LANCASTER:  In what

          8  sense?  You mean as opposed to registration or

          9  certification?

         10                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO:  Right.

         11                 COMMISSIONER LANCASTER:  Well,

         12  frankly, the General Counsel's Office does not see

         13  much of a progression or much of a difference among

         14  all of those.  So, if we were to call it

         15  registration or certification, you know, that would

         16  be fine.  It is really the requirements and the

         17  jurisdiction that we are looking for, and the

         18  ability to stop a bad scaffolding contractor from

         19  being able to pursue further work.  The reason that

         20  we are pursuing licensing is that just writing a

         21  violation does not seem to us to promote safety in

         22  the same way as it would to be able to pull

         23  someone's license, as a threat, a deterrent.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO:  So, if he

         25  has a problem on this construction site and his
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          2  license is pulled, and he doing work on two or three

          3  other jobs in the City, is his license pulled on

          4  everything he is doing?

          5                 COMMISSIONER LANCASTER:  Yes.  Now I

          6  would like to have Julie Lubin a little bit further

          7  on this.  She did some research for us.

          8                 DIRECTOR LUBIN:  Just I think what we

          9  should add is that typically when an entity is

         10  licensed, revocation of a license is sort of a final

         11  last act after there have been numerous previous bad

         12  acts before that.  So what is going to be happening

         13  is there will be  So, the way we take action is

         14  there will be violations at first, potentially there

         15  would be a case brought in over to the Office of

         16  Administration Trials and Hearings, and a company

         17  might have their license suspended.  Revocation does

         18  not happen that often, but the point is, you know

         19  unless there is a stake holder with something to

         20  lose, there is not much to ensure that people will

         21  actually take notice of the violations or change

         22  their practices to be safe.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO:  But, isn't

         24  that moving us away from scaffolding?

         25                 DIRECTOR LUBIN:   I am sorry I do not
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          2  understand.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO:  This bill is

          4  addressing scaffolding, so if we are talking about

          5  all the other kinds of things that he could be

          6  losing, he or she could be losing his license for--

          7                 DIRECTOR LUBIN:  No, no the entity

          8  would only be licensed in this regard, the licenses

          9  that this bill sets forth.  So, I am just saying

         10  that licensure no matter what kind, always works in

         11  a step, faster.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO:  Oh, okay.

         13  So, if he loses his license because he made some

         14  kind of an error, mistake, whatever, with

         15  scaffolding, and he has three other jobs that are

         16  going on in the City that have absolutely nothing to

         17  do with that issue, he still loses his license on

         18  all of the jobs.  So, everything he is doing within

         19  the City stops?

         20                 DIRECTOR LUBIN:  No, if it is an

         21  entity that only does scaffolding work, the

         22  Scaffolding Company only does scaffolding work for

         23  example, if that entity loses its license it can no

         24  longer do scaffolding work.  If it is a business

         25  that does multiple kinds of work, than it can
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          2  continue doing those other kinds of work, the kinds

          3  of work that are not covered by a license.  But I do

          4  not know if factually that comes up that often.  It

          5  seems like it is a pretty specialized industry.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO:  So, can you

          7  shut down a site without pulling a license,

          8  according to this bill?

          9                 COMMISSIONER LANCASTER:  Yeah, we can

         10  do that now.  We do that, it is called scaffold

         11  lifting.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO:  But, if this

         13  bill were in place?

         14                 DIRECTOR LUBIN:  No, it would not

         15  change anything.  All it would be, would be an

         16  additional way to ensure that the industry took

         17  safety seriously, and took these violations

         18  seriously, because it does not just mean that they

         19  are going to have to go to an administrative court

         20  and pay a fine.  It means that they may actually

         21  lose their ability to do that kind of work in the

         22  future, if they have a repeated number of bad acts

         23  in the specific area, but they, you know, erect X

         24  number of scaffolding in an unsafe manner it means

         25  they may no longer be able to erect scaffolds.  That
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          2  is what the license means. Where as at present they

          3  just can get repeated numerous violations and

          4  nothing happens.  There is no way to prevent them

          5  from doing that.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO:  Okay, there

          7  is lots of other things going on in my head, but I

          8  think I am going to see if the Members of the

          9  Committee have any questions, Councilman Avella.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER AVELLA:  I will sort

         11  of pick up on what the Chair was just talking about.

         12    Does the license apply to the company?  So, let's

         13  assume the worst case scenario that you have an

         14  individual out there who started a company, does not

         15  follow the rules, and you revoked the license, but

         16  then that person declares bankruptcy, and then

         17  tomorrow starts up another company, what happens

         18  under this bill?

         19                 COMMISSIONER LANCASTER:  Than that

         20  second company will need to be licensed as well.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER AVELLA:  But, the

         22  person can still do it.  In a way they can still get

         23  around the system if they just create another

         24  company name.

         25                 COMMISSIONER LANCASTER:  Yes.
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          2                 DIRECTOR LUBIN:  But if I could add

          3  to that, the certificate holder that they employ,

          4  you know, is somebody that also has a stake, in

          5  other words, the company, the business entity that

          6  is licensed has to employ certificate holders who

          7  have training, who pass the test et cetera.  So, it

          8  is possible that that can be one and the same, but

          9  it is also possible that it does not have to be.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO:  Councilwoman

         11  Reyna.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER REYNA:  Commissioner,

         13  thank you for being here.  I just wanted to ask you

         14  a question concerning the level of training.  I just

         15  do not see how your demonstration, putting forward

         16  this amendment addresses, and perhaps I am missing

         17  it.  I know that OSHA has training standards, is

         18  that what you are proposing to adopt, and therefore

         19  you do not mentions it in this amendment, and so it

         20  is an automatic?

         21                 COMMISSIONER LANCASTER:  No, it is

         22  actually in the legislation, what we say is it is

         23  based on OSHA's training.  It may not necessarily be

         24  OSHA per say, but we think OSHA does good courses,

         25  in that they cover all points and then people come
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          2  out of their classes trained better than when they

          3  went in.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER REYNA:  So every

          5  worker on that scaffolding, whatever industry needs

          6  a scaffolding in place to commence their work, will

          7  be trained?

          8                 COMMISSIONER LANCASTER:  The bill

          9  calls for the installers and erectors to be

         10  certificate holders and--

         11                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO:   And that is

         12  during installation, right?  Those people need to be

         13  trained a lot. The people that come on the

         14  scaffolding use the scaffold day to day, not

         15  tomorrow, da da da, all the subcontractors that use

         16  the scaffold, not install it, but use it are not

         17  required to be trained.  That is where I am talking

         18  we get into tens of thousands of people.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER REYNA:  Chairwomen

         20  Provenzano, I just wanted to understand that the

         21  original bill called for everyone, whether you were

         22  using it or erecting it, to be trained?

         23                 COMMISSIONER LANCASTER:  Yeah.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER REYNA:  And,

         25  Commissioner are you confident that not every worker
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          2  using the scaffold once it is erected, as well as

          3  the erectors, to be able to, or be mandated to be

          4  trained?

          5                 COMMISSIONER LANCASTER:  We thought,

          6  that it would be very difficult for the Department

          7  to enforce that. It is not that it is not a bad idea

          8  per say, but if you look at the fact that you do not

          9  know day to day which subcontractor is going to use

         10  the scaffolding, necessarily or how many people, or

         11  maybe he hires day laborers, and not someone that

         12  works for his company all the time, and you do not

         13  have any control over that, that it would be better

         14  to have someone who is on site all the time be

         15  responsible for the scaffolding.  I guess, I see

         16  that there are two, as the Chairwoman said, there

         17  are two primary ways that scaffoldings fail; one is

         18  being overloaded, and the other is modified.  So,

         19  what you really want, you do not really necessarily

         20  want some worker for the masonry contractor to be

         21  deciding whether the scaffolding has been altered

         22  since it was erected as per plans and specs.  They

         23  are not really qualified to do that, where as the

         24  general contractor supervisor should be.  The other

         25  thing I think that is worth mentioning is that there

                                                            24

          1  COMMITTEE ON HOUSING AND BUILDINGS

          2  is no reason that on a large project you could not

          3  have more than one certificate holder.  You know,

          4  you would have to however many you thought you would

          5  have to have, for however many people are working on

          6  site to oversee it properly.  We did not want to

          7  mandate that though because of the fact that we

          8  think people will use good judgment in it, but

          9  because we have to weigh the economic feasibility of

         10  it.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER REYNA:  Now, just to

         12  get a better understanding, based on the accidents

         13  that have occurred, and Madam Chair Provenzano had

         14  mentioned, part of the problem is the fact that they

         15  overload the scaffolding. Just because of the survey

         16  or the study itself in evaluating how these

         17  accidents do happen, do you think that training can

         18  perhaps minimize accidents from happening, or the

         19  supervisor alone, being on site, licensed or

         20  certified to be there will prevent, you know, a

         21  certain amount of overload or a certain amount of

         22  workers on the scaffolding because they would be

         23  trained enough to, if he sees, you know to much on

         24  one scaffold that he will be able to call them on

         25  that and say get off the scaffold.  I am just trying
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          2  to understand how is it that this one supervisor,

          3  however many supervisors are needed on site will

          4  deter accidents from happening, based on the fact

          5  that overload is one reason as to why accidents do

          6  happen, or the other one that you had mentioned?

          7                 COMMISSIONER LANCASTER:  Alteration.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER REYNA:  Alteration.

          9                 COMMISSIONER LANCASTER:  Yeah, I

         10  think that the idea that there is someone, a point

         11  person responsible for the scaffolding and its use

         12  is stronger than having multiple points of contact.

         13  For instance, if there are say 25 or 30

         14  subcontractors on a medium size project, then maybe

         15  half of those at some point are using the

         16  scaffolding.  And, I do not know that they would be

         17  anymore qualified than the GC to assess whether the

         18  scaffold has been altered, or to assess whether it

         19  is being overloaded.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER REYNA:  But the common

         21  goal here is, ultimately to minimize to no accidents

         22  from happening.

         23                 COMMISSIONER LANCASTER:  Absolutely.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER REYNA:  And, so I am

         25  just trying to understand, how is it that these
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          2  amendments are reaching that goal, or whether the

          3  original bill happened to do that more so than this

          4  one?

          5                 COMMISSIONER LANCASTER:  Well, I

          6  think this bill does it in a way that is

          7  enforceable, and it does it in a couple of ways.

          8  One is by training, increasing the amount of

          9  training--

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER REYNA:  For the

         11  supervisors only?

         12                 COMMISSIONER LANCASTER:  For

         13  supervisors, yes and installers. Right.  The second

         14  way is by increasing our enforcement capability by

         15  means of requiring a license because if we can take

         16  your license, it is a deterrent, it gives us broader

         17  reach than if it were not in place.  Right now, no

         18  one is required to monitor scaffolding.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER REYNA:  Right, okay,

         20  thank you.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO:  To answer

         22  your question, the original bill suggested 32 hours

         23  of training for anybody that worked on the

         24  scaffolding.  I think what the Commissioner is

         25  saying, they think it would be hard for them to
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          2  monitor everyone.  But what about the possibility of

          3  have a contractor who is hiring these people in the

          4  first place, again I do not know, be the one who is

          5  responsible for seeing that these folks have the

          6  training, rather than making it a responsibility of

          7  the Department of Building?

          8                 MR. MASON:  I still think some of the

          9  same problems would happen.  We would not be able to

         10  identify who all of these people were, we might not

         11  have clear records from the contractor, there would

         12  be more ifs out there that that approach would not

         13  resolve.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO:  But, now you

         15  have no knowledge of who is out there.

         16                 MR. MASON:  But we have an

         17  accountable person. We have a clearly accountable

         18  person that is ultimately responsible for the status

         19  of the scaffolding once it is up, and people are

         20  using it.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO:  Right, but

         22  again, we are talking about the folks that are

         23  walking around on the scaffold and loading it up.

         24                 MR. MASON:  The balance between what

         25  is ideal and what is enforceable, and what is likely

                                                            28

          1  COMMITTEE ON HOUSING AND BUILDINGS

          2  to lead a realistic result that would realistically

          3  lead to a reduction in injuries and other incidents

          4  in scaffolds.  That is where we felt the appropriate

          5  balance was.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO:  You mean we

          7  are not going to end up with a perfect bill.

          8                 MR. MASON:  Close to perfect.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO:  I will only

         10  take a perfect bill.  I want to introduce Council

         11  Member Lou Fidler who joined us, and Councilwoman

         12  brewer has a question or two

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER:  I now

         14  understand from the last hearing, the difference

         15  between sheds and scaffoldings, now when I walk

         16  around the West Side I can identify them, it is very

         17  exciting.  But, my question is, now would the

         18  situation be the person who is putting up the

         19  scaffolding would have to have this license, and the

         20  person who is maintaining it has to have a license,

         21  and it might be the contractor or the owner of the

         22  company in both cases or it might be somebody else

         23  he or she has assigned to that job, is that the

         24  concept?

         25                 COMMISSIONER LANCASTER:  Licensing
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          2  for scaffolding installation firms--

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER:  Right, right,

          4  exactly.

          5                 COMMISSIONER LANCASTER: --

          6  certificates for the installer.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER:  For the

          8  person who is maintaining it.  Okay, and the

          9  certificate is something that you can pull if there

         10  is a stop work order, what do you with the

         11  certificate if in fact there is a problem, do you

         12  pull it?

         13                 COMMISSIONER LANCASTER:  Yeah, we do

         14  what Julie just described about level of proceedings

         15  where we go first to--

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER:  Right, and to

         17  the oath, and so on, and so forth.  Okay, so that is

         18  what happens with a certificate.  Now how does this

         19  get explained, just out of curiosity, to the police

         20  department, they are the one that often have to

         21  monitor the stop work orders in our neighborhood,

         22  and they are very confused.  So that is a big

         23  problem.  I mean I am just saying that is another

         24  step in the process.  When we have stop work orders,

         25  which we have a lot of on the West Side, then the
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          2  police often are confused about this process, so it

          3  is just another step in the process.  They are very

          4  confused about stop work orders.

          5                 COMMISSIONER LANCASTER:  Yeah, we

          6  will talk to them about it.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER:  Okay, all

          8  right, what is the way in which the company applies

          9  for it, is it just like any other certificate or

         10  just any other license.

         11                 COMMISSIONER LANCASTER:  Yeah, we

         12  probably run it very similar to our other programs

         13  for the other 27 trades.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER:  Okay, thank

         15  you very much.

         16                 COMMISSIONER LANCASTER:  Thank you.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO:   I have one

         18  more question.  In Section 6 of the bill, it imposes

         19  a requirement that a natural person be responsible

         20  for inspecting all supported scaffolds over 26 feet

         21  high, blah, blah, blah, to ensure, blah, blah, blah.

         22  Could you just explain a natural person?

         23                 COMMISSIONER LANCASTER:  Good

         24  question.  I would like to act this one out if you

         25  do not mind.  It is opposed to a company, an
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          2  individual as opposed to a company.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO:  So would it

          4  be someone that works for the Department of

          5  Buildings, would it be someone who works for the

          6  contractor?

          7                 COMMISSIONER LANCASTER:  It is

          8  someone that works for the contractor, or the owner,

          9  yeah.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO:  Or the

         11  owner.

         12                 COMMISSIONER LANCASTER:  In other

         13  words, most of the installations are done with the

         14  construction issue. Scaffolding over 26 feet high is

         15  generally associated with a medium size to large

         16  size construction job, and most of those are done by

         17  GC's with, you know, their subcontractors.  If,

         18  however, it just happens that it is a major facade

         19  renovation and the masonry contractors the major on

         20  the site, then it would his or her employee.  Do you

         21  see what I mean?  It is whoever is the contracting

         22  entity.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO:  Okay, but

         24  that is not spelled out in here--

         25                 COMMISSIONER LANCASTER:  No.
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          2

          3                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO: -- so that

          4  should probably be clarified.  We have had some feed

          5  back from the industry, and they are a little

          6  confused about--

          7                 COMMISSIONER LANCASTER:  Who the

          8  person works for.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO: -- who the

         10  financial person is.

         11                 COMMISSIONER LANCASTER:  Yeah, okay.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO:  Do we have

         13  anybody else in here?  Oh, I would like to introduce

         14  Leroy Comrie, who has joined us.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE:  Good

         16  afternoon, I had a personal business matter that

         17  they did not care that I was in a bind they had a

         18  meeting to go to.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO:  Yeah, that

         20  happens, Leroy.  Do we have any other questions?  We

         21  are going to let you go.  You are definitely leaving

         22  somebody here?

         23                 COMMISSIONER LANCASTER:  Absolutely.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO:  Okay.

         25                 COMMISSIONER LANCASTER:  Yes,
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          2  several.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO:  Thank you

          4  very much.

          5                 COMMISSIONER LANCASTER:  Thank you.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO:  David, are

          7  you the lucky person?  Oh, good, okay.  Okay we have

          8  got them all.  Do we have several folks coming up

          9  together or Lou Coletti, Kenneth Buettner, Eric

         10  Guhring.  Whoever wants to start first just make

         11  sure you introduce yourself.

         12                 MR. COLETTI:  Thank you, Madam

         13  Chairman.  My name is Lou Coletti, I am the

         14  President of the Building Trades Employers'

         15  Association.  We represent some 1,500 contractors in

         16  New York City, construction managers, general

         17  contractors, and specialty trade contractors.  I am

         18  going to jump around a little in my testimony

         19  because I would rather have us respond to some of

         20  the, I think very good questions, that you were

         21  asking about this issue.  I would like to clarify

         22  one point based on a question that was made that I

         23  think was very important.  That is the importance of

         24  the particular piece of legislation.  If a

         25  hoisting/scaffolding license is pulled, the entire
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          2  construction project is stopped, because every trade

          3  uses that to get their people up and down, the

          4  materials go up and down.  So this particular piece

          5  of legislation has a tremendous impact on all of the

          6  other trade contractors and their work forces that

          7  are going to be on a job.

          8                 We have been doing a lot of research

          9  on the issue of safety.  My organization along with

         10  Ed Malloy, who is the President of the Building

         11  Trades, and let me share with you why I believe the

         12  individual safety training, not contractor

         13  licensing, is the most effective way to reduce

         14  accidents.  The single most important factor that

         15  contributes to fatalities and accidents on

         16  construction sites in the nation, not just in New

         17  York City, is the lack of safety training that is

         18  provided to contractor project managers,

         19  superintendents, foreman, and to the labor force,

         20  the users.

         21                 In looking at this issue of

         22  construction safety, the United States Department of

         23  Labor conducted a series of studies.  They

         24  concluded, and I quote:  "The Fatality Assessment

         25  and Control Evaluation Report reveals important
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          2  shortfalls in the training, preparation and

          3  professionalism of construction Workers and

          4  managers, especially at small companies".

          5                 Across the river, the New Jersey

          6  Department of Labor undertook a project to improve

          7  construction worker place, the work- place safety,

          8  it took about eight years.  That agency reported a

          9  decline from 8.3 injury cases per 100 full time

         10  workers to 5.4 over an eight- year period.  What

         11  they say is that they give the credit to safety

         12  training and more effective enforcement of safety

         13  regulations as a reason for the lower numbers.

         14                 We participated with the Commissioner

         15  and her staff in the Summit meeting in November of

         16  2002, and I have got to tell you that it was a

         17  tremendous experience and she should be given a lot

         18  of credit for calling us altogether to discuss

         19  construction safety.  It was the first time in my 15

         20  year career that we have ever done anything like

         21  that.  What we concluded, and we agreed with the

         22  Department is that there is no one single reason

         23  that construction accidents seem to be on the rise.

         24  There are three primary factors:  One is the lack of

         25  safety training for the work force- and again that
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          2  includes the project manager, the contractor's

          3  personnel, but also includes the workers on that

          4  construction site- a lack of supervision while the

          5  project is being built, and fatigue. In our view,

          6  contractor licensing does not address the real issue

          7  of how to make contractors more diligent and their

          8  responsibility to manage a construction site that is

          9  both safer for the public and the workers.

         10                 I would like you to ask yourself this

         11  question, on that October 24th day, when five people

         12  were killed, and four people were injured in

         13  Manhattan, when that 13- story scaffold collapsed,

         14  in your opinion what do you think would have been a

         15  more effective requirement that could have saved

         16  their lives?  That contractor having a license, or

         17  those workers having the training, and knowing how

         18  to erect, and knowing how to work on the scaffold.

         19                 There is no need to reinvent the

         20  wheel.  The Federal Occupational Safety and Health

         21  Administration is the expert when it comes to

         22  scaffolds.  That is why we would recommend that you

         23  incorporate into the legislation, which I think is

         24  initially incorporated into 237, the OSHA training

         25  requirement.  It exists, it is inexpensive, and it
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          2  is the industry standard.

          3                 We understand the problem that the

          4  Commissioner is trying to deal with, because we

          5  support her in that problem, in trying to solve the

          6  problem.  We want contractors who do not respect

          7  safety requirements out of the business and not be

          8  able to build in New York City.  The licensing is

          9  not to do it.  If the Commissioner feels that the

         10  building code does not provide enough power,

         11  authority, to effectively deal with that contractor,

         12  I would respectfully suggest that we need to take a

         13  look at that as a separate matter, because it is not

         14  just for scaffolding contractors, it is for

         15  contractors in general.

         16                 But, some of the questions before, I

         17  think, were right on target.  The key is the

         18  training of that individual worker, it is not

         19  expensive.  The way it works, let me show you if I

         20  can the way it is not expensive, let us take a look

         21  at Ground Zero.  How did Ground Zero get cleaned up

         22  with over three million hours of work, not a single

         23  death, not a single serious injury?  A, I would

         24  suggest to you that it was because the project

         25  managers, superintendents, and individual workers on
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          2  that side had years of safety training experience

          3  before they got called down there.  Second of all,

          4  before anybody walked on that site, they were

          5  required to successfully pass a trained curriculum

          6  that we set up at the site.  Five different

          7  components relying primarily on safety classes, no

          8  one walked on that site.  Everyone was issued a

          9  card, when the Department of Buildings' staff was on

         10  the site, when OSHA inspectors were on the site,

         11  they stopped individual workers, if you did not have

         12  the card, off you cannot work.

         13                 I think we can come up with a system

         14  that does not over burden the Department of

         15  Buildings in terms of making sure every single

         16  person has that card.  That is the responsibility of

         17  the contractor.  If you are a general contractor you

         18  can put language in your sub- contracts that says,

         19  City has a requirement that each one of your workers

         20  working on a scaffold has taken these classes.  When

         21  you sign my contract, you are certifying that that

         22  has been done.  I mean, I think there are ways to do

         23  it without overwhelming the Buildings Department,

         24  but I think licensing is absolutely the wrong

         25  approach.  It is the individual training for both
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          2  the supervisors on that job, as well as the

          3  individual trades.

          4                 I will give you one story and then I

          5  am going to turn it over to some real contractors.

          6  What happens is I think someone was giving an

          7  example, what happens to a contractor when a

          8  different trade walks on the scaffold, not a member

          9  of his work force because we all keep payroll

         10  records, we all know who is supposed to be there,

         11  and takes a piece of the scaffold out and it

         12  collapses?  What good is it to say to that

         13  scaffolding contractor, you have lost your license?

         14  You are not solving anything.

         15                 The key is, is what was contained in

         16  237, safety training, and I would suggest to you

         17  that in a time, if we are going to get serious about

         18  trying to resolve construction accidents and

         19  fatalities, we need to start making sure that

         20  everybody is trained because too many contractors do

         21  not even file for permits.  We do not even know they

         22  are there.

         23                 The Buildings Department is doing the

         24  best job that it can with the resources they have.

         25  This is not a slap at them.  I have a great deal of
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          2  respect for Patricia Lancaster, for the Mayor, for

          3  you for putting extra money in the budget during

          4  some very difficult times, to try to get inspectors.

          5    But there are too many people out there that do

          6  not comply with the law today, they are not going to

          7  comply with the law tomorrow.  So, getting them a

          8  license, in my view is not productive.  The

          9  Commissioner wants to talk to, and we support how

         10  you take when you catch somebody like that, and you

         11  put them out of business, we are 100 percent

         12  supportive of that.  And you require that the people

         13  on that job site be trained that is where you are

         14  going to have the impact.

         15                 So, I thank you for your attention,

         16  and I will turn it over to these guys.

         17                 MR. BUETTNER:  Thank you.  My name is

         18  Ken Buettner, and I am President of York Scaffold

         19  Equipment in Long Island City.  I will spare you the

         20  burden of my resume.  People put things up to the

         21  best of their knowledge.  Unfortunately, many of the

         22  people who are putting scaffolding and sidewalk

         23  sheds up, are merely not knowledgeable enough to do

         24  the job right every time.  Training is the soul way

         25  that that gets done.  Putting regulations in place
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          2  that have licensing so that after something falls

          3  down, there is somebody available to be hung is very

          4  nice, but that does not prevent the accident from

          5  happening in the first place.

          6                 There are three specific areas that I

          7  would like to look at in the training.  The first

          8  would be with the scaffold erector.  Currently, the

          9  32- hour training program, which had been suggested

         10  in the earlier version of this Intro., is what is

         11  suggested and put in place by Federal OSHA. It is

         12  what is currently being used throughout the United

         13  States and here in New York City for example, in the

         14  training by the District Council of Carpenters.  All

         15  of my scaffold installers, not just the foreman,

         16  everyone of my scaffold installers has completed the

         17  32- hour program, and is retrained during the time

         18  of expiration, which I believe is two years or three

         19  years.  It is not a burden, it is something that is

         20  appropriated for people who are going to be putting

         21  a scaffold up that is going to be 40, 50, 60, 100

         22  feet up in the air where it could fall down.  They

         23  should be trained, they must be trained.

         24                 The current proposal is for a higher

         25  level of training, some nebulous level of training
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          2  to be required of the supervisor of the scaffolding

          3  company.  Well, that is all well and good, the extra

          4  five years of experience that are required for a

          5  certificate, I applaud that, and I agree with that,

          6  but they should have at least a 32- hour requirement

          7  of Fed. OSHA.  The installers themselves, should

          8  have that 32 hours. If they have been in the

          9  business for five years and want to become a

         10  supervisor, that is a fine thing for them to aspire

         11  to with the experience under their belt.

         12                 Users must be trained.  Fed. OSHA

         13  requires that users of scaffold be trained, and user

         14  awareness and hazard awareness.  It is not a 32-

         15  hour program.  It is something that can be put

         16  together in several hours, but that several hours

         17  teaches them not to take out and leave out graces,

         18  which are necessary.  It teaches them not to take

         19  out and remove the ties that hold a scaffold to a

         20  building while masonry work is done without

         21  replacing them.  These are the common things that we

         22  see as users are in the course of their work

         23  modifying and altering a scaffold, rendering it

         24  dangerous without people knowing it is happening.

         25  By training them, they no not to do these things.

                                                            43

          1  COMMITTEE ON HOUSING AND BUILDINGS

          2                 Lastly has to do with training for

          3  sidewalk for shed erectors.  For the life of me, I

          4  cannot understand why sidewalk sheds are not

          5  included in the training requirements.  In my

          6  prepared statement I refer to a sidewalk shed- do we

          7  have a fire or something- in my prepared testimony I

          8  refer to sidewalk sheds as scaffolds on steroids,

          9  because that is about what they are.  They are not

         10  just a sidewalk shed, they are themselves,

         11  scaffolds, contractors repairing, demolishing, and

         12  installing new facades, walk on them, work on them,

         13  they protect the pedestrians from the facades

         14  overhead and dangerous conditions.  They are used as

         15  landing platforms for supported scaffolds.  They are

         16  used as a starting point and base point for steel

         17  supported scaffolding, and we expect a great deal of

         18  sidewalk sheds. So, why should there not be at least

         19  the steal scaffold requirements, the supported

         20  scaffold requirements required of sidewalk shed

         21  installers.

         22                 Unless some of these changes are

         23  made, I cannot support the legislation that is

         24  currently here.  I am supportive of the work that

         25  this Committee is doing, but the current format that
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          2  is before us is not sufficient to do the work

          3  properly and will just be a piece of useless

          4  legislation, I am afraid to say.

          5                 I would be happy to answer any

          6  questions regarding practical applications.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO:  We will hear

          8  their testimony and then we will.

          9                 MR. GUHRING:  Good afternoon, my name

         10  is Eric Guhring, I am Vice President and General

         11  Counsel of Atlantic Heydt Corporation, which is a

         12  Brooklyn contractor specializing in sidewalk sheds,

         13  scaffolding, and hoist systems.  We do work

         14  primarily in the tri- state area.  We do jobs as

         15  large as 731 Lexington, 300 Madison, and the George

         16  Washington Bridge, and sidewalk shed and smaller

         17  scaffolding jobs, and the Outer Boroughs in

         18  downtown.  We consider ourselves a leader in the

         19  industry with respect to safety, and are committed

         20  to seeing the New York City pass a bill that assists

         21  in regulating the training and certification of

         22  trainers in our industry.

         23                 While we applaud the City Council and

         24  the Department of Buildings for working so hard to

         25  draft and pass a law that protects the public as it
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          2  relates to scaffolding in our City, we respectfully

          3  disagree with the current form of the proposed law.

          4  If the goal is to create a safer industry, the means

          5  should be the establishment and clear detailing of

          6  the training requirements for those who erect,

          7  maintain, and dismantle scaffolds, as well as the

          8  other trades who use our scaffolds.  This framework

          9  of training and certification existed in the

         10  original and the New York City Department of

         11  Buildings--

         12                 (Fire Drill)

         13                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO:  Okay, the

         14  meeting was interrupted.  There was a fire drill,

         15  and now we are all back.  Some of us are back, some

         16  of us are chickens.

         17                 We are resuming testimony with Eric

         18  Guhring.

         19                 MR. GUHRING:  Okay, I will continue

         20  thank you. We completely concur with the positions

         21  taken here today by the Building Trades Employers'

         22  Association and Ken Buettner of York Scaffold

         23  Equipment Corp. Including the position against

         24  licensing.

         25                 In addition, we would like to
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          2  underscore the following two points:  One, is the

          3  importance of establishing in this law, the specific

          4  training, certification and testing requirements for

          5  those who build and use scaffolding.

          6                 Two, is the importance in clarifying

          7  the identity of the natural person responsible for

          8  inspecting the scaffold while any work is takes

          9  place on that scaffold.

         10                 In reference to the first issue,

         11  training and certification, we understand that we

         12  will be governed under this proposed law, as well as

         13  our other high quality competitors, such as York

         14  Scaffold, Regional, UBS, and others. The problem is

         15  that Atlantic- Heydt, and York, Regional, and UBS

         16  are not what the City needs to worry about.

         17                 Speaking for Atlantic- Heydt, we have

         18  a full time Site Safety Director on staff.  We have

         19  an in- house engineering department with licensed

         20  Professional Engineers. We have in- house training

         21  and require OSHA and practical raining of our entire

         22  workforce.  The projects we work on are generally

         23  multi- million dollar projects run by international

         24  construction management firms.  We are not what the

         25  City Council needs to worry about.  It is the small,
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          2  untrained scaffolding contractor or perhaps the

          3  waterproofing contractor who has some wood plank and

          4  steel frames and is putting up scaffolds on our City

          5  streets.  It is only with requiring training of the

          6  workers can the industry see a lesser incidence of

          7  scaffold related accidents.  Those who build,

          8  maintain, and dismantle scaffolds must be required

          9  to take initial training courses and follow up

         10  refresher course. Equally important is the

         11  requirement that those who use the scaffold be

         12  trained so as not to improperly modify or alter the

         13  scaffolding.  Having properly trained workers on the

         14  site will naturally create a safer work environment.

         15    Sometimes learning occurs through osmosis.  The

         16  skills and safe work practices of a trained worker

         17  will rub off on the untrained workers and make the

         18  entire workforce practice safer work habits.

         19            The second issue I would like to briefly

         20  discuss is the portion of the proposed law that

         21  requires "a natural person or persons, whose

         22  training, qualifications, and responsibilities shall

         23  be prescribed by the rules of the Department, shall

         24  be responsible for inspecting all supported

         25  scaffolds over 26 feet high to ensure that they are
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          2  in a condition when used that conforms to approved

          3  plans and specifications."  The overall concept

          4  seems to make sense, having one person or entity be

          5  responsible to make sure the scaffold stays in the

          6  condition that it was when initially erected.

          7  Practically speaking, however, this scheme whereby

          8  the person would inspect the scaffold and keep a log

          9  of the inspections throughout all work, must be

         10  clarified.  To require the scaffolding contractor to

         11  perform this task is simply not feasible.

         12                 Atlantic- Heydt, as the scaffold

         13  contractor, may come to a typical jobsite and take

         14  one or two days to erect the scaffold.  After the

         15  scaffold is erected, we effectively turn our

         16  equipment over to our customer, who is usually the

         17  construction manager or general contractor, and then

         18  when we leave the site for months, if not years only

         19  to return to provide maintenance.  While the

         20  scaffold is in our customer's care, custody, and

         21  control, the other trades use our trades to assist

         22  them in their work.

         23                 So, essentially what you were saying,

         24  Madam Chairperson, was that it is very important to

         25  clarify who the person is because it really should
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          2  not be us because either we are going to have to

          3  have someone on site, or we will have to pass that

          4  cost along, which could be economically prohibitive.

          5  So, while the solution is not readily apparent, it

          6  should be clarified in the law.

          7                 In conclusion, Atlantic- Heydt,

          8  completely supports the concept of a law that

          9  regulates the certification and training of these in

         10  our industry.  The framework set forth by the

         11  Department of Buildings in their draft from December

         12  2002 did this by establishing OSHA requirements and

         13  the 32- hour courses.  A safer industry is better

         14  for everyone. It keeps the construction workforce

         15  and pedestrians safe.  It keeps insurance premiums

         16  and deductibles down, and it keeps us in business.

         17  However, for the reasons set forth by the BTEA and

         18  our colleague, Mr. Buettner, from York, and the

         19  issues previously mentioned in my testimony here, we

         20  cannot support this that is currently proposed.

         21  Thank you.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO:  Eric, do you

         23  have copies of your testimony?

         24                 MR. GUHRING:  I have a few copies,

         25  yes.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO:  Okay, could

          3  you get them to us?

          4                 MR. GUHRING:  Sure.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO:  Does anyone

          6  have any questions?  Councilwoman Reyna.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER REYNA:  Because we

          8  were interrupted, we were talking outside, Mr.

          9  Coleti--

         10                 MR. COLETTI:  Yes.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER REYNA: -- you had

         12  mentioned or suggested a way as to how it would

         13  work, considering the first draft of the bill, how

         14  it is doable so that OSHA, for a certain amount of

         15  money, will train one person, and that person comes

         16  back and trains the workers.  Is that correct?

         17                 MR. COLETTI:  That is correct.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER REYNA:  Could you just

         19  elaborate on that?

         20                 MR. COLETTI:  The way OSHA training

         21  works is an employee of a company goes to an OSHA

         22  certified trainer, and takes a class on say, in this

         23  case it would be the 32- hour scaffolding class.

         24  That individual is issued a card by OSHA because

         25  OSHA maintains that the individual who is doing the
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          2  training must submit a log that the individual

          3  attended the class and successfully passed and

          4  examination.  They are then issued the card.  That

          5  individual then can go back to their own company and

          6  put 15 people from their firm in a classroom and

          7  teach them the class, same rules.  OSHA requires

          8  that an attendance report be submitted on each of

          9  the individuals taking the class that they have in

         10  fact passed the examination.  They then submit that

         11  to OSHA who then issues that training instructor,

         12  the cards that are then distributed to the different

         13  people.  So, we are not talking about a large

         14  investment of dollars here.  What we are talking

         15  about is a large investment in professionalism in

         16  saving people's lives.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER REYNA:  Thank you.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO:  Councilwoman

         19  Brewer.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER:  I have the

         21  same kind of question, which is that say for

         22  instance in your cases obviously you do the right

         23  thing, and you do not have stop work orders, and it

         24  is not a problem, but, how does everybody get

         25  trained, but not have a license, if there is a
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          2  problem, how does it get solved?  In other words, my

          3  experience in the community is that we have an

          4  illegal construction going on, and we often call the

          5  police, so is there an interaction and stop work

          6  order, or sometimes there is a stop work order

          7  issued somehow it gets to the precinct, the precinct

          8  is called, it is not abided by, it goes on and on.

          9  It is usually a long process trying to get the job

         10  stopped, small ones, we are not talking about the

         11  big ones.  So, how does, if everybody has an OSHA

         12  card and their is a problem, what is the remedy for

         13  the community?

         14                 MR. COLETTI:  I think the remedy is

         15  that when a Department of Buildings' inspector shows

         16  up on the site, and asks the contractor to produce

         17  for him or her the cards or the payroll of the

         18  people to show that they in fact have or issued

         19  those cards, and they do not, the inspector goes

         20  back and says put a stop work order on it.  Again, I

         21  compare that to the way we handled Ground Zero.

         22  That is what OSHA inspected--

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER:  That was one

         24  spot, though, in other words, I agree with that,

         25  that was really impressive.  But when you have, you
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          2  know, many, many jobs happening in New York City,

          3  like Ground Zero was sort of like a secret service,

          4  you had one place to go through, and it was pretty

          5  intense.

          6                 MR. COLETTI:  But it was done also in

          7  Las Vegas.  We had the same program in Las Vegas

          8  when they had the new casino boom about five years

          9  ago from four or five sites. I think ultimately what

         10  we are seeking a solution for is something that

         11  there is no solution for.  I say this with a great

         12  deal of respect, okay.  We will never get the number

         13  of construction inspections that we really need--

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER:  Right, that

         15  is the problem.

         16                 MR. COLETTI: -- to actively enforce

         17  anything. It does not exist.  The Department has not

         18  had the financial support for 25 years, there is no

         19  reason to believe that they are going to have the

         20  kind of resources it needs for the next 25.  So, I

         21  think conceptually, what we have to look at is how

         22  do you prevent that contractor from getting in the

         23  door, and then if you catch somebody the penalties

         24  have to be severe.

         25                 I am suggesting to you that licensing
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          2  is not going to catch anybody up front because those

          3  contractors that are violating the law today, this

          4  is just another law they are going to continue to

          5  violate.  You are either going to have to catch

          6  them, and put them out of business, and as I said we

          7  are willing to sit with the Department because if

          8  they do not think they have the authority to do

          9  that, and they need to come before this Council, we

         10  will come with them because we are tired of being

         11  beat up in the public.  For contractors, the job

         12  that both the Commissioner and I talked about, that

         13  scaffolding contractor had no business being in

         14  business and threatening their lives or anybody from

         15  the community.

         16                 This is not going to work.  It is

         17  going to become another law that does not get

         18  enforced.  The people that get it enforced are going

         19  to be the larger contractors, and then our fear,

         20  quite candidly, and it is something we lived through

         21  in Time Square, a scaffold collapsed, and now we

         22  have to worry about, potentially a political agenda

         23  coming in and you take a major firm like Atishman

         24  (phonetic), who has got one of the best safety

         25  records in the United States, and somebody says we
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          2  are shutting your site down.  You will put thousands

          3  of people out of work.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER:  Okay.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO:  Do we have

          6  anymore questions, Council members, anymore

          7  questions, Council members?  No.  We thank all of

          8  you.

          9                 MR. COLETTI:  Okay, Madam Chair,

         10  thank you.  If before we leave, if I could just put

         11  one point of clarification on the record, the

         12  Building Trades Employers' Association as an

         13  organization has not taken a position with respect

         14  to licensing of sidewalk sheds.  Again, but to us it

         15  is irrelevant, sidewalk sheds, scaffolding, hoisting

         16  contractors, the issue of licensing will not work.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO:  Thank you.

         18                 MR. COLETTI:  Thank you very much.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO:  I would also

         20  put on the record that Council Member James Oddo was

         21  here, I did not introduce him when he was here and

         22  had to leave.  Mike McGuire, thank you. You just

         23  want to introduce yourself.

         24                 DIRECTOR MCGUIRE:  Mike McGuire Mason

         25  Tenders' District Council.  I am going to go away

                                                            56

          1  COMMITTEE ON HOUSING AND BUILDINGS

          2  from my written testimony here for several reasons,

          3  basically because you have all heard it before, you

          4  have all read it before.  I think this is the fifth

          5  or sixth time I am addressing this Committee on

          6  scaffolding.  As a matter of fact, when I went to

          7  pull up the testimony to do a fresh testimony for

          8  today, the first file I have in my computer listed

          9  is scaffold testimony that I did was in 1997, which

         10  was on an earlier version of this bill, and that is

         11  when it was concerning two- point suspended

         12  scaffolding, which there will be promulgated rule

         13  changes to include and now it is morphed (sic) into

         14  this bill.

         15                 What I am hearing here today is

         16  licensing, and we want to do licensing because when

         17  something goes wrong, we want to be able to punish

         18  the offenders.  But, what I am seeing in my union, I

         19  am seeing people getting injured and people getting

         20  killed, and we are trying to stop that.  I am not

         21  worried about punishing the contractor so much as

         22  keeping the workers healthy and alive.  The problem

         23  with licensing schemes is what happens is the

         24  enforcement, basically goes after the licensed

         25  contractors, that inadvertently encourages the
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          2  creation of an underground industry of non- licensed

          3  contractors.  You know, undoubtedly what happens is

          4  that the enforcement process fixates on the licensed

          5  contractors and the unlicensed contractors flourish.

          6

          7                 The other problem, of course, with

          8  something along those lines is City agencies and

          9  department buildings and everyone else, they are

         10  terribly understaffed and, you know they are

         11  overburdened, there budgets are to low.  It is a

         12  problem, and any time serious enforcement on an

         13  issue like this is going to be out of the question,

         14  so there would be an initial push once the bill goes

         15  into effect, which always happens, and that will

         16  fade away as some other issue comes up. Then there

         17  will be a burst of intensified enforcement the next

         18  time somebody is killed.  Then when that happens,

         19  you know, I will be back here again in this chair

         20  saying we have to fix the laws know, and make it

         21  work right from the beginning.  I mean, we have

         22  heard a lot of things today and what I would suggest

         23  is, we were always in favor of licensing the

         24  erectors, the people who actually put it up.

         25  Everybody who is putting up the scaffolding should
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          2  have some sort of certificate of fitness.  The

          3  Commissioner's idea that a supervisor be on site, I

          4  think that is a good idea.  I think it is a very

          5  good idea.  The problem is, you take a building like

          6  AOL Time Warner, which I do not know, maybe Lou

          7  knows how many men are working on that job, I know

          8  there is--

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER:  It is 2,000.

         10

         11                 DIRECTOR MCGUIRE: -- 2,000.  Yeah,

         12  there are 300 laborers on that job site.  Oh yeah,

         13  that is right it is in your district.  When you get

         14  a big construction site like that it is a little

         15  incomprehensible to think of one person overseeing

         16  the scaffolding to make sure, you might a dozen,

         17  fifteen different contractors out on a scaffold

         18  during the day doing this doing that, taking court

         19  brackets, undoing ties. I would suggest that maybe

         20  the smarter way to do that is to require each

         21  contractor or subcontractor to have their on site

         22  supervisor hold a scaffold supervisor certificate.

         23  It would not be a dedicated person so there is no

         24  additional payroll costs to the company.  It would

         25  be the person that is on site anyway, they can keep
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          2  the log, and if each company is doing this and that,

          3  they would perhaps report then to the site safety

          4  manager on the site or whoever.  At the end of the

          5  day, any changes that were made they would log the

          6  changes, and something along those lines.  I think

          7  that would go a lot further to, not only making sure

          8  that the scaffolding that was put up correctly by

          9  the licensed or the people with the certificate of

         10  fitness, stays that way, but also when you have the

         11  issue of overloading the scaffold with material or

         12  whatever else, that ties in a lot closer to that.

         13  So, I think that is probably, in my mind,  the best

         14  of both worlds.

         15                 I would certainly love to see all

         16  users have to have some sort of safety training.

         17  Our members go through it when they are apprentices

         18  and those who came in after the apprentice program

         19  took place can they take that training as well.  I

         20  think that might be somewhat onerous, it might be a

         21  bit much on the industry to look to have every

         22  person who goes out on a scaffold to have some sort

         23  of training.  I know we are not talking about the

         24  32- hour training we are offering the erectors it

         25  would probably be a four- hour class, something
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          2  along those lines, but again, I would love to see

          3  it.  If there some way somebody can opt to make it

          4  feasible, I would be more than happy to support it.

          5  But, I think the happy medium is each company has a

          6  supervisor who is certified as a scaffold erector

          7  supervisor, and the folks who actually put up the

          8  scaffolding, take it down, maintain it, and repair

          9  it should all hold a certificate of fitness.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO:  Thank you,

         11  Mike.  Do we have any questions?  Gale.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER:  I should know

         13  this, but if the person, he or she, was to get a

         14  license, I am sorry any training from the Department

         15  of Buildings and/or from OSHA do they have to be a

         16  citizen, do they have to have papers, is that ever

         17  an issue, Mike, just out of curiosity, maybe it has

         18  never come up?

         19                 DIRECTOR MCGUIRE:  In our

         20  organization, you know, the training is done through

         21  our training funds--

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER:  So it is not

         23  an issue.

         24                 DIRECTOR MCGUIRE: -- so if you are a

         25  member it is not an issue, you know our members
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          2  are--

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER:  All over the

          4  place, I know.

          5                 DIRECTOR MCGUIRE:  We do not track

          6  any of that information--

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER:  I know, but

          8  have you ever heard any discussion along those

          9  lines.  I forgot to ask the Commissioner, I just did

         10  not want to eliminate people who might not have

         11  papers.

         12                 DIRECTOR MCGUIRE:  Well, I do not

         13  know if DOB would actually be doing the training, I

         14  think DOB would--

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER:  Okay, so it

         16  might not be an issue.

         17                 DIRECTOR MCGUIRE: -- have certified

         18  various areas to do the training.  They would not be

         19  actually doing the training themselves.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER:  So it would

         21  not be an issue then.

         22                 DIRECTOR MCGUIRE:  I would not think

         23  so, no.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER:  Okay, thank

         25  you.
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          2                 DIRECTOR MCGUIRE:  Thank you.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO:  I just want

          4  to thank everybody for testifying and for being

          5  here, and it will have one more go around,

          6  hopefully.  I hear that there really is a 3:00

          7  Council meeting.  This meeting is adjourned.

          8                 (Hearing adjourned at 2:55 p.m.)
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